M NUTES
SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
February 20, 2001
7:01 PM

TAPES

SFC-01 # 19, Side A
SFC 01 # 19, Side B
SFC-01 # 20, Side A

CALL TO ORDER

Co- Chair Dave Donl ey convened the nmeeting at approximately 7:01 PM
PRESENT

Senat or Dave Donl ey, Co-Chair
Senat or Pete Kelly, Co-Chair
Senator Jerry Ward, Vice Chair
Senat or Lyda G een

Senator Gary W/ ken

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senator Loren Leman

Al so Attending: JANET CLARKE, Director, Dvision of Admnistrative
Services, Departnment of Health and Social Services; BOB LABBE,
Director, D vision of Medical Assistance, Departnent of Health and
Soci al Services; MKE MAHER, Director, Division of Adm nistrative
Servi ces, Departnent of Revenue; DEVIN M TCHELL, Debt Manager,
Treasury Division, Departnent of Revenue; KURT PARKAN, Deputy
Comm ssi oner, Departnent of Transportation and Public Facilities;
DWAYNE PEEPLES, Director, D vision of Admnistrative Services,
Departnent of Corrections; CHRIS CHRI STENSEN, Staff Counsel, Ofice
of the Adm nistrative Director, Al aska Court System DAN SPENCER,
Director, Division of Admnistrative Services, Departnment of
Adm ni stration; ALISON ELGEE, Deputy Conmm ssioner, Departnment of
Adm ni stration; TOM LAWSON, Director, Division of Admnistrative
Services, Departnent of Community and Econom c Devel oprent; ANNALEE
MCCONNELL, Director, Ofice of Managenent and Budget, O fice of the
Gover nor

Attending via Tel econference: From Anchorage: BRANT MCGEE, Public
Advocate, Ofice of Public Advocacy, Departnent of Adm nistration;
BARBARA BRI NK, Director, Public Defender Agency, Departnent of
Adm ni stration; GREG WOLF, Director, Dvision of International

SFC- 01 (1) 02/ 20/ 01



Trade and Marketing Devel opnent, Departnment of Community and
Econom ¢ Devel opnment; NAN THOWPSON, Conmi ssioner and Chair,
Regul atory Comm ssion of Alaska, Departnent of Community and
Econom ¢ Devel opnent

SUMVARY | NFORMATI ON

SB 73- SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRI ATI ONS/ AMEND APPROP.

The Commttee heard from the Departnment of Health and Soci al
Services and the Departnment of Revenue, the Departnent of
Transportation and Public Facilities. The bill was held in
Committee.

SB 74- FAST TRACK SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRI ATI ONS

The Conmittee heard fromthe Ofice of Managenent and Budget, the
Departnment of Corrections, the Al aska Court System the Departnent
of Adm nistration, and the Departnent of Community and Econom c
Devel opnent. The bill was held in Commttee.

#SB74
SENATE BI LL NO. 74

"An Act nmaking supplenental and other appropriations; and
providing for an effective date."”

Departnent of Health and Social Services

Section 5 (a)

Department of Health and Social Services

Ener gy Assi stance Program Budget Review Unit (BRU)

Addi tional federal funds for Low Incone Heating and Energy
Assi stance (LI HEAP) grants.

$3, 351, 300 federal funds

JANET CLARKE, Director, Dyvision of Admnistrative Services,
Departnent of Health and Social Services, testified that these
federal funds are a result three unbudgeted rel eases in Decenber
2000. One rel ease, she explained, canme about after an increase in
the block grant by the US Congress as a result of the Bal anced
Budget Act. She stated that the other two increases relate to
contingency funds that were released to all 50 states due to the
hi gh costs of fuel

Ms. Clarke remarked that the entire ambunt woul d be distributed as

SFC- 01 (2) 02/ 20/ 01



grants to approxi mately 8,600 households and that all househol ds
that qualify under the |owincone guidelines would receive these
f unds.

Section 5 (b)

Department of Health and Social Services

Medi cai d BRU

Repl ace FY 01 funds, which had to be used in July to pay prior
year Medicaid clains to assure continuous paynent of clains in
April .

$8, 970, 100 federal funds

$6, 030, 000 statutory designated programreceipts

Ms. Clarke testified this request is for clains received in June
2000, which the departnent did not have sufficient authorization to
pay. She noted that the item has been "pushed forward" into FY 0O1.

Co- Chair Donley asked if the departnent, "used 2001 funds to pay
of f 2000 debt."

Ms. Clarke explained that in the state's accounting system the
Medi cai d programis operated on a "cash-basis". She el aborated that
the departnent pays bills when they are received rather than the
date of service. She stated that these bills were received in June
2000, and that because the departnent did not have adequate funds
to pay them the departnment del ayed paynent until July 2001.

Senat or Leman wanted to know if any of the paynents nmade were for
services not authorized by the legislature within the last two
years.

Ms Cl arke assured that they were not. She stated that the services
are all authorized under the Medicaid statute.

Senator Green asked if the supplenental request arose from an
underestinmate of the need for services, the nunber of patients
served, or increased expenses.

Ms. Clark replied all were a factor and remarked that the
departnent "severely underesti mated" the amount of Medicaid clains
in FY 00. She noted that although the |egislature appropriated a
suppl enental request during the last |egislative session, the cost
of Medicaid services consistently rose above what the departnent
predi ct ed.

Senator Green commented that $22 mllion was appropriated the

previ ous session and, added to the $15 million request before the
Conmittee, the FY 00 underestimation totals $37 mllion.

SFC- 01 (3) 02/ 20/ 01



Ms. Clarke stressed that the original appropriation was based on
t he | owest possi bl e casel oad and expendi ture scenari o.

Senator Geen wanted to know if the increases were a reflection in
the nunber of people requiring services, if nore services were
being provided to a static nunber of patients, a nmatter of
i ncreased nedi cal costs, or a conbination.

Ms. Clarke replied that it is a conbination of an increase in the
nunber of patients being served and hi gher nedical costs. She noted
the increases in pharmaceutical costs plus the increased
utilization of nedical services.

Senator Geen asked if a particular state or federal action
accounted for the increase in the nunber of participants.

BOB LABBE, Director, Division of Medical Assistance, Departnent of
Health and Social Services, explained that federal requirenents
play a part in the increase. He gave prescription drug nandates as
an exanple where the state has little choices. He also noted the
i ncreasing costs of health care for the disabled along with the
| arger elderly casel oad. However, he pointed out the |egislative
decision to expand coverage to nore children under the KidCare
program He stated that nedical costs are going up faster than
anticipated and that the percentage increases are consi stent across
t he nati on.

Senat or Green asked how much of the underestimation is attri buted
to KidCare costs.

M. Labbe responded it would take tinme to get that information.
Senat or Green requested those figures.

Co-Chair Donley asked for an explanation of the $6,030,000
statutory designated program receipts (SDPR). "Were did that
nunber cone fron?" he asked.

Ms. Clarke offered a brief explanation of the Pro-share program

Co- Chair Donl ey expressed that he was nore interested in know ng
why that dollar anmobunt was requested.

Ms. d arke responded that the $15 million that the departnment coul d
not pay in FY 01 is a conbination of federal funds and state
mat chi ng funds. She explained the $6 mllion SDPR woul d be used as
a state match to claimthe $8.9 million federal funds, which is a

SFC- 01 (4) 02/ 20/ 01



60/ 40 percent ratio. She continued that the revenue, or the cash
t he department woul d receive for the SDPR, cones fromthe Pro-share
program

Co-Chair Donley again asked if the $6 mllion figure is an estinate
and if the state already has that anmount in SDPRs.

Ms. Clarke referred to testinony given the previous |egislative
session where the departnent stated that the Pro-share receipts it
coul d generate are governed by the "upper limt calculation.” She
rem nded that if the departnent pays out $18 million, $10 nmillion
is returned which could be freed for state match purposes. She said
t he departnment cal culated that upper limt in the spring of 2000 to
be $20 million. She relayed that over the previous sumer, the
federal governnent becanme interested in states’ use of the Pro-
share funds and consi dered shutting dowmn the program As a result,
she stated that the department recalculated its upper Iimt as $28
mllion in July 2000.

Ms. O ark spoke of the overlap between the state and federal fisca
years. She remarked that it is in the state’s best interest to nake
an additional Pro-share paynent to offset the increased upper limt
calculation during the first quarter of the state's FY 01, which is
the final quarter of the federal fiscal year

Senat or Wl ken relayed that his office has been contacted several
times with conplaints that the Famly Centered Services has been
closed for the remainder of the fiscal year due to |ack of funds.
He asked if any of the suppl enental appropriation would be used to
reopen the center

Ms. Carke replied that the facility was inpacted by the
departnment's action the previous sumer to imediately pay all
valid Medicaid clainms. She admitted that there was a "gap in
paynment” to nonprofit agencies such as the Famly Centered Services
and as a result of cash-flow probl ens.

Senator Wl ken wanted to know if the facility would be further
affected before the end of FY O1.

Ms. O arke stated that assistance, including technical training and
support, has been given to the facility to ensure the Medicaid
clains are correct so they could be paid pronptly.

M. Labbe added that several neetings have been held and a plan was
bei ng devised to maintain the facility's viability. He warned that
w t hout adequate funding through the supplenental budget, there
woul d continue to be cash-flow problem in the Medicaid program

SFC- 01 (5) 02/ 20/ 01



whi ch inpacts the provider community.

Senator W/l ken then asked if the $15 mllion requested in the
governor's fast track supplenmental budget is adequate funding to
avoid future shut downs.

M. Labbe stated that the $15 mllion request only addresses the
Pro-share paynent made in July 2000. He stressed that additional
funds were requested in SB 73, the regular supplenental budget
request.

Senator Green did not understand why this request needed to be
included in the fast track suppl enental .

Ms. O arke responded that the departnent has a cash-fl ow probl em
wi th the Medicaid program because the departnent was naki ng | arger
Pro-share paynents than anti ci pat ed.

Senator Geen referred to the nmethod under which Pro-share operates
and how the funds are reinvested, and asked if federal funds
replace state funds.

Co-Chair Kelly explained, "W are matching federal noney wth
federal noney."

Senator G een then asked if there is a net use of state funds or if
the federal funds were just shifted.

Ms. Clarke replied that the state funds are needed initially to
make the first paynent.

Senat or Green wanted to know if the state really needed to expend
f unds.

Ms. O arke answered the state had to nake the up-front paynent to a
government operated hospital, which would retain ten-percent of
that paynment and return 90-percent to the state. She continued that
t he 90-percent could then be used as a state match to rei nburse the
initial paynent, and therefore requiring no general funds.

Senator Geen found it difficult to consider this fast track
request, w thout also considering the regular suppl enental request
at the sane tine. She expressed that the state could not continue
to pay for Medicaid in this manner. She was concerned about the
i npact in the future.

Ms. O arke stressed that the departnent operates the programin
accordance with all requirenments and would continue to do so unti

SFC- 01 (6) 02/ 20/ 01



the rules change. She enphasized that eligible participants are
entitled to services.

Senat or Green asked if the guidelines were set in federal nandate
or state statute.

M. Labbe replied that it is a conbination of both and expl ai ned
there are mandatory services and mandatory client groups under the
federal Medicaid programand that there are also state options on
servi ces and groups.

Senator Geen wanted to know if the state has cost-contai nment
control only over the state-option portions of the program

M. Labbe nentioned the options including rei nbursenent |evels paid
to providers.

Senator Geen asked if the state or the federal governnent
determ nes "how you get in the front door", or "who qualifies for
what services".

M. Labbe responded that the state chose to participate in the
Medi caid program several vyears after the federal system was
established. As a result, he said, in order to participate, the
state had to agree to cover certain people and to provide certain
services. He noted that the state added additional services and
groups of people who qualify for the program

Senator Green then asked if the state has investigated cost
contai nment options to possibly curtail this "upward spiral".

M. Labbe shared that the departnment has a "fairly aggressive"
utilization managenent program and he detail ed the provider reviews
conducted and software packages utilized. He stressed that Al aska
has one of the better systens in the county for editing incomng
clains fromproviders. He qualified that there is a | arge casel oad
and general service costs. He spoke of the state statutes and
regul ati ons that govern reinbursenment for hospitals and nursing
homes. He opined that the state’s reinbursenent rates were "not
unr easonabl e".

Co-Chair Kelly referenced action taken by the legislature and the
departnent for FY 99 to refrain fromfundi ng abortions through the
state. He asked if the funds in question were being used for that
pur pose.

Ms. O arke responded that none of the funds contained in the fast
track supplenental were intended for that purpose.

SFC- 01 (7) 02/ 20/ 01



Co-Chair Kelly then asked if during the exchange of Pro-share funds
with the federal governnent, the funds are al ways contai ned under
the Hyde Amendnment or whether at any tine they could be used for
public funding of abortion. He wanted to know, "does it ever change
from federal noney?”

Ms. O arke did not know.

Co-Chair Kelly requested the wi tness provide an answer sonetine
during the | egislative session.

Ms. Clarke delved into one reason this item was included in the
fast track supplenental. She stated that the US Congress has taken
steps to shut down the Pro-share program and that the programis
in a transition stage. She pointed out that the Health Care
Fi nanci ng Adm ni stration (HCFA) issued regulations in January 2001
that woul d severely curtail the Pro-share program She shared that
the Department of Law advises that if the additional Pro-share
paynent were nmade within 60 days, when the regulations becone
effective, the paynment would fall under the upper limt contained
in the current guidelines. If paynent were del ayed, she warned, the
paynment woul d be subject to the updated regul ations and therefore
only be eligible for $20 m|lion federal funds.

Depart nent of Revenue

Section 9 (b)

Departnent of Revenue

Adm ni stration and Support BRU

Ener gency replacenment of air conditioner in conputer room
$31, 500 general funds

MKE MAHER, Director, Division of Admnistrative Services,
Departnent of Revenue, testified that the current systemis over 19
years old and has been experiencing malfunctions. He spoke of
$13,000 in repairs invested in the systemand the $3,000 to $4, 000
damage caused to conputer systens as a result of overheating
mal functions. He shared that the servicing conpany has stressed
that the unit has exceeded its usefulness. He |isted the pernmanent
fund program and the Tax D vision as inportant prograns that depend
upon the system

Co-Chair Donley asked if the departnment had existing funds that
could be used for this purpose.

M. Maher responded that the departnent did not have dedicated
funds and had planned to upgrade the systemto try to extend its

SFC- 01 (8) 02/ 20/ 01



life for a couple nore years, before the recent troubles arose.

Senator Leman referred to mneral deposits found in the water flow
system and wondered if that could be the cause of sonme of the
mal f uncti ons.

M. Maher was unsure whether the system had a water filter, but
stated that part of the difficulties were with the water flow as
well as the building s booster punp failures, which automatically
cause the systemto shut down.

Senat or Leman asked if the corrosion of piping was a problem for
the entire building or just this area.

M. Maher answered that it was affecting the entire building, which
he stressed is over 30 years old.

Section 10 (a)

St at e Debt

Appropriate remai ni ng bal ance of the general obligation bond
redenption fund to the debt retirenent fund

$102, 200 ot her funds (source not specified)

Section 10 (b)

St at e Debt

Addi ti onal appropriation needed to nmeet FY 01 debt service
obl i gati ons.

$639, 800 general funds

DEVIN M TCHELL, Debt Manager, Treasury Division, Departnent of
Revenue stressed the need to neet the state's obligations rel ated
to its Certificates of Participation in the School Debt
Rei mbur senent program He testified that the reason this itemis
included in the fast track supplenental request is because the
paynent is due before the regular supplenent funding 1is
appropriated. He warned that if the funds were not provided in a
timely manner, the state would be unable to pay on its obligations.

M. Mtchell explained that because two different prograns utilize
the debt retirenment fund, one being the School Debt Rei nmbursenent
program which reinburses nunicipalities for their debt, the state
has issued a | arge anmount of debt in the past several years as a
result of HB 281 and SB 11 from the twenty-first |egislative
session. He detailed that the Departnent of Education and Early
Devel opnent nust nake an appropriation request based on an
estimation  of the required reinbursenent based on the
muni ci palities' estimates of their annual debt issuance. He stated

SFC- 01 (9) 02/ 20/ 01



that the Departnment of Education and Early Devel opnent's estimate
is $4 mllion, but that part of the appropriation appears to have
been accounted twice in the FY 01 budget. He stated that the
department had been able to use funds carried forward from previ ous
years to address this in the past, but that this would not be
possible in the current year, due to the double accounting of the
f unds.

Departnent of Transportation and Public Facilities

Section 11 (4)

Departnent of Transportation and Public Facilities
Northern Region Facilities BRU

Deadhorse Conbined Facilities project funded fromthe
Federal Aviation Adm nistration |ease

$53, 600 federal funds

KURT PARKAN, Deputy Conm ssioner, Departnent of Transportation and
Public Facilities, testified that the departnent anticipated the
Federal Aviation Adm nistration (FAA) funds for the joint use of
the Deadhorse facility for the FAA flight service station. He
stated that the departnment has a Menorandum of Understanding with
the FAA regarding the 35-year | ease of a portion of the state-owned
facility. He added that the FAA pays the maintenance costs of that
buil ding, which is the reason for this appropriation.

Section 11 (3)

Department of Transportation and Public Facilities
Capital BRU

Del ong Mountain airport access study

$281, 900 federal funds

M. Parkan detailed the "earmarked" project from the Al aska
Congr essi onal del egation, which is |located on the Chukchi Sea near
Kot zebue and serves as the port for the Red Dog M ne. He spoke of
the difficult access to the mne, noting that the funds would be
used to study the feasibility of constructing an airstrip to
provi de access to the mne and surroundi ng communities. He stressed
the need for the fast track approval due to the inpending | apse of
t he grant.

Senat or Austernan noted the $9.4 mllion construction estinate and
want ed assurance that there is no match requirenent fromthe state.

M. Parkan affirmed that there is no state funding requirenent and
listed other projects that also qualified. He stressed that the
departnment woul d not conduct the study but rather funnel the funds
to the Al aska Industrial Devel opment and Export Authority (Al DEA).

SFC-01 (10) 02/ 20/ 01



Senat or Wl ken wanted to know if the constructed airport woul d be
restricted to certain users.

M. Parkan did not know specifically, but noted that facilities
built with federal funds are required to be publicly accessible.

Senat or W1 ken understood that the Delong Muntain Road is not
accessible for all users and requested the witness investigate the
mat t er.

M . Parkan agreed to do so.

Senator WI ken then asked who would maintain and operate the
facility once it was constructed.

M . Parkan responded that AIDEA is taking full responsibility and
woul d contract for that service.

Senator W1l ken asked if the Red Dog M ne/Comnco would be
responsi bl e.

M. Parkan stated he woul d ask about the rel ationship between Al DEA
and Cominco and whether the corporation would provide sone
rei nbur senent .

Senat or W1l ken requested answers to these questions.

Senator Hoffrman asked if this project were approved, would it
affect other airport projects contained in the six-year plan?

M . Parkan answered that it would not.

Section 11 (1)

Departnent of Transportation and Public Facilities

Capital BRU

Fai rbanks I nternational A rport equi pnment storage maintenance
facility to be funded with Passenger Facility Charges

$905, 000 I nternational Airports Revenue Fund

and

Section 11 (2)

Department of Transportation and Public Facilities

Capital BRU

Fai rbanks International Airport safety and maintenance
equi pnent to be funded with Passenger Facility Charges

$1, 065, 000 International Airports Revenue Fund

SFC-01 (11) 02/ 20/ 01



M. Parkan explained that the state's international airports had
begun to charge Passenger Facility Charges (PFC) nmi ntenance fees
to passengers after receiving approval from the FAA in Cctober
1999. He shared that the departnent submtted a request to exenpt
those travelers residing in conmunities not connected by a road
system and the subsequent decision to delay collection of the fees
until this exenption was enacted. He detailed the process of
gai ni ng approval, which was received in April 2000.

M. Parkan then addressed the need for the fast track approval
caused by the FAA requirenent that the state nust expend funds
within two years of the initial approval date of October 1999. He
noted that the department nust have a contract in place, and the
equi pnent purchased before the deadline. He continued that a second
reason for fast tracking the funds is to capture part of the sumrer
2001 construction season and build an enclosed building before
winter with final work conpleted during the winter of 2001. He said
that if the project were delayed a year, the cost of the project
woul d rise due to inflation.

Section 11 (5)

Departnent of Transportation and Public Facilities

Capital BRU

Copper River Hi ghway work done under the Consent Agreenent
$400, 000 general funds

M. Parkan explained this is the final piece of the consent decree
of the lawsuit pertaining to construction along the highway and
that it would settle the lawsuit and all ow construction projects to
continue. He warned that if this paynment were not nmade, the matter
woul d return to court and all previous progress would be | ost.

Senat or Hof fman wanted to know t he cost of not making this paynent.
M. Parkan could not anticipate the anount, but noted that the
departnent's attorney's fees are "extraordi nary” even when not
involved in a lawsuit.

Senator Hoffman wanted information from the Departnment of Law
regardi ng the consequences if the case were to conti nue.

Senator Green assuned that sonme of the Copper River H ghway
projects included in the supplenental budget could have been
anticipated and therefore spared from the supplenental or fast
tracked budgets.

M. Parkan replied that discussions with the US Corps of Engi neers

SFC-01 (12) 02/ 20/ 01



occurred in the fall of 2000 and that the funds should be
appropriated to capture the sumrer construction season.

Co- Chair Donley commented, "W're finally trying to build a road
somewhere and this is what happens.”
SFC 01 # 19, Side B 07:48 PM
#SB 73
SENATE BILL NO 73
"An Act nmaking supplenental appropriations and nmaking and
anendi ng ot her appropriations; and providing for an effective

date."

Departnent of Corrections

Section 3

Department of Corrections

Correctional Industries Production Cost BRU

Increase for naterials used in the Correctional Industries
progr ams

$650, 000 Correctional Industries fund

DWAYNE PEEPLES, Director, Division of Adm nistrative Services,
Departnment of Corrections noted that this itemis also included as
an increnment the governor's proposed FY 02 operating budget. M.
Peepl es detailed the funds woul d be used for selling nmeat products
inthe M. MKinley Meat Plant, flat goods production in the H | and
Mountain Woman's Facility, and for increased furniture production
at the WIdwood and Spring Creek Correctional Centers.

Al aska Court System

Section 4

Al aska Court System

Judi ci al Conduct BRU

Legal fees for formal disciplinary hearing
$41, 900

CHRI S CHRI STENSEN, Staff Counsel, Ofice of the Admnistrative
Director, A aska Court System stated that he did not represent the
Judi ci al Conduct Conm ssi on.

ANNALEE MCCONNELL, Director, Ofice of Mnagenent and Budget,

Ofice of the Governor, explained that the Comm ssion held a
disciplinary hearing for a judge and that this suppl enental request

SFC-01 (13) 02/ 20/ 01



is to pay the Commssion's |egal expenses associated with the
heari ng.

Department of Adm nistration

Section 1(a)

Departnent of Adm nistration

Leasi ng BRU

Shortfall in anmount funded for |eases with the private sector
$1, 678, 700 general funds

DAN SPENCER, Director, Dyvision of Admnistrative Services,
Departnent of Admnistration, stressed this request would be

approximately $2 mllion less than any year since FY 88. He
rem nded how the legislature has consistently appropriated |ess
than the projected <costs for leasing expenses wth the

under st andi ng that savi ngs woul d be sought.

[ Note: teleconference connection extrenely poor. Mmst of the
testinmony is inaudible.]

Section 1(b)
Departnent of Adm nistration
O fice of Public Advocacy BRU

Shortfall in current year funding exacerbated by increased
costs, especially for Child in Need of Aid and guardian ad
| item cases

$1, 791, 000 general funds

BRANT MCCGEE, Public Advocate, O fice of Public Advocacy, Departnent
of Admnistration, testified via tel econference from Anchorage that
for the 16 of the past 17 years, a supplenental appropriation has
been necessary due to the inability to precisely predict the nunber
of cases the Ofice would receive each year. He stated that this
request would fund operations for the renai nder of the fiscal year.

MR. McGee expl ained that the casel oad increased 28.8 percent from
FY 00. He remarked that this increase is primarily a result of the
bal | oon project to nove children through the state custody system
and into permanent placenent. The OPA' s statutory obligation in
this process, he continued, is to provide a guardian ad litemto
the children involved and council to many of the parent's invol ved,
particularly when the custody rights of one parent are chall enged,
but that the other parent's are not necessarily in question. He
el aborated that this occurs with sone cases of abuse inflicted by
one parent, because the other parent is entitled to OPA assi stance.

M. MGCee noted that these cases are primarily civil matters as

SFC-01 (14) 02/ 20/ 01



well as are Child in Need of Ad cases. He detailed the subsidy
costs as well as the percentage of full attorney fees paid by the
OPA. He noted that the OPA contracts pay between $65 and $80 per
hour. He stressed that the sole advantage of the OPA in the
mar ket pl ace is its practice of paying in a tinely manner on a 30-
day cycle.

Section 1 (c)

Departnent of Adm nistration

O fice of Public Advocacy BRU

Repl eni sh current year funding used to pay remaining FY 00
costs

$77, 400 general funds

M. MGCee testified that this request is to cover paynent of
services provided in FY 00, but not invoiced until FY 01.

Senator Geen relayed discussions in a recent neeting with the
Department of Health and Social Services regarding the balloon
project and asked if the OPA has received funding from the
Departnment of Health and Social Services to cover costs related to
t he project.

M. MGee affirmed.

Senator Green asked if this supplenmental request is for expenses in
addition to those the Departnent of Health and Social Services
funds cover.

M. MGee 's referred to cost overruns.

Senator Green asked if the balloon project paynents to the OPA
appear in the regul ar budget.

M. MGee affirned.
Co- Chair Donl ey inquired about the 28 percent increase in casel oad.

M. MGCee clarified that in addition to an increased casel oad, sone
cases were lasting |longer than antici pated.

Co- Chair Donl ey asked why the cases were taking |onger to resol ve.

M. MCee replied there is no proof, but anecdotal evidence
indicates that Child in Need of A d cases are nore vigorously
litigated, and therefore require nore guardian ad litemtinme. He
expl ai ned that the Ball oon project cases involve the termnation of
cust ody and because of this are seriously litigated.

SFC-01 (15) 02/ 20/ 01



M. MGee expounded on the reason for the |lengthier cases due to
provi sions contained in HB 375, passed by the previous |egislature
that inpose strict time limts for obtaining permanent placenent
for the children in question. He stated that the OPA had predicted
that the casel oads could be handled within the shorter tinmeframnes
because the amount of work would not increase significantly.
However, he said the shorter tinefranes increased the |ikelihood of
litigation. He opined that the parents were nore likely to
challenge the termnation of custody, when actually faced with
| oosing their children.

Senator Green commented that the intent of the Balloon project was
to elimnate the back | og of cases, process the cases nore quickly
and eventual |y reduce the nunber of cases; know ng that there would
al ways be sone incom ng cases. She wanted to know if a decrease in
t he nunber of cases coul d be expected.

M. MGCee agreed it could and noted that the Balloon project has
been successful and the backl og has been significantly decreased.
He detailed the office is on the third set of cases, but that these
woul d have a higher cost to resolve. He added that this program
i ncludes the Departnent of Law, Departnment of Health and Soci al
Services, the OPA, the Public Defender Agency and the Al aska Court
System

Senator Green wanted to know if, because the backlog is now
elimnated and the OPA is only handling the new cases, would there
be an advantage to reconsidering the provisions of HB 375.

M. MCee clarified that the backlog has been reduced but not
elimnated and that he thought the tineline should actually be
shorter. He qualified that no one has agreed with him on that
point. He predicted that if the adjudication tine were closer to 30
days, there mght a decrease in litigation over tine. He al so noted
that with the Balloon project as well as in other cases, the OPA
not only provides a guardian ad litem but also is responsible for
payi ng contractors to represent one or both parents in those cases.
He stated that it is nore common that the OPA provides council for
one parent, but that it does occasionally provide for two.

Co- Chair Donley asked the percentage of the attorneys in these
cases are not paid by the state.

M. MGCee replied that there are not very nmany cases. He spoke of a

recent case that involved a private attorney representing the
adoptive famly.

SFC-01 (16) 02/ 20/ 01



Co-Chair Donley wanted to know the "standard" and asked if there is
an econom c standard that determnes with the OPA does not get
i nvol ved.

M. MGCee replied that the court nmakes such a determ nation subject
to the sanme indingency standards that apply to qualification for a
public defender in crimnal cases. He noted that the Child in Need
of Aid cases involve an "overwhel mng nmgjority"” of poor people.

Co- Chair Donl ey asked the success ratio of cases with the state's
i nvol venent .

M. MGCee answered, "It depends on how you neasure success." He
el aborated that in sone instances, the parents involved are able to
correct the behavior that precipitated the custodial challenge.

Co-Chair Donley asked if the OPA was pursuing nore of these cases
then necessary. He again asked the wi tness what he considered an
appropriate success ratio.

M. MGee phrased, "how many of these cases does the court find
that the sane justice to be to take custody of the child, is
unjustified." He answered there are very few such cases. Typically,
he added that those cases are resolved at the probabl e cause phase
where the judge determnes the famly was inproperly interfered
with.

Section 1 (d)

Departnent of Adm nistration

Publ i ¢ Def ender BRU

Provi de remai ni ng funds needed for basic operations in current
year

$380, 300 general funds

BARBARA BRI NK, Director, Public Defender Agency (PDA), Departnent
of Administration, testified via teleconference from Anchorage
explaining the reason for the request is due to an increased
casel oad and an increased workl oad. She stated that in the previous
year, the agency handled over 19,200 new cases in addition to
approximately 6,000 pending cases. She cautioned that half-year
projections indicate a continued casel oad grow h.

Ms. Brink stressed that the types of cases that are increasing are
the nost tine consuming and resource intensive cases usually
requiring extensive litigation and forensic work. These, she noted,
include Child in Need of Aid cases. She inforned the Conmttee that
the PDA represents parents in situations where the Division of
Fam |y and Youth Services renoves a child fromthe hone. She cited

SFC-01 (17) 02/ 20/ 01



the Al aska Court System 2000 Annual Report as showi ng a six percent
i ncrease of these cases in Anchorage, 17 percent increase in Bethel
and 47 percent increase in Ketchikan. She stated that serious
consequences, such as the loss of a child, and shorter tine franes
due to new legislation, appear to have increased litigation in
t hese cases.

Ms. Brink continued that serious felony cases have increased as
well. She again cited data from the Al aska Court System report:
cases in Anchorage have increased nine percent, Palnmer has
increased 12 percent and Bethel has increased 36 percent. She
poi nted out that because of the serious consequences in these
cases, such as mandatory inprisonnment, these cases are less likely
to settle without litigation.

Ms. Brink enphasi zed that the PDA cannot control casel oad increases
or workl oad increases. She explained the process where the Al aska
Court System makes an indi gency determ nation, stressing that the
PDA cannot decline a case. Rather, she said, the US and Al aska
Constitutions, statutes and Rules of Professional Responsibility
require work be done to satisfy providing the effective assistance
of counsel.

Ms. Brink detailed the increasing contractual costs as foll ows.

» Discovery: the costs of police reports and ot her evidence
fromthe Departnent of Law

e Travel: 13 offices cover 45 additional renpte courts
sites for regular court sessions with few conpetitive
travel providers

* Interpreters/Forensic Experts

* Tel econmuni cati ons:
Many clients are incarcerated hundreds of mles
from their |awer (e.g. Anchorage-Pal ner, Kenai,
Sewar d; Barr ow Fai r banks)
The Departnment of Corrections Evercom entails
expensi ve | ong-di stance charges for basic attorney
client consultation

Ms. Brink pointed out that none of the funds in the suppl enental
request address the serious deficiencies noted in the Division of
Legi slative Budget and Audit report issued the previous year
identifying inadequate staffing, unconpensated overtine, support
staff ratio and |ack of technol ogy. She spoke of the nmaintained
vacanci es in Anchorage, Pal ner, Barrow, Kotzebue and Ketchi kan. She
cautioned that the PDA could not continue this practice for nuch
| onger. She noted that each |awer is currently responsible for 80-

SFC-01 (18) 02/ 20/ 01



150 clients at any given tinme, many with i mredi ate court hearings
and ot her pressing needs.

Section 1 (e)

Departnent of Adm nistration

Longevity Bonus BRU

Current estimate of anmount needed to fully fund Longevity
Bonus fornul a program

$1, 100, 000 general funds

M. Spencer noted that the I|anguage detailing this item is
different than previous |ongevity bonus rel ated | anguage. He stated
that this request appropriates fromthe general fund, the anount
necessary to fund the Longevity Bonus G ants program however mnuch
that may be. He remnded that in the previous year, a projected
anount was cal culated, but was then amended several tinmes. He
explained that the |egislature, over the past several years, has
under-funded the grants appropriation for this itemin the initial
budget. As grant paynents are made, he said, the departnent then
revises the forecast based on the last check run to cal cul ate the
anount needed through the end of the fiscal year. He gave exanpl es
of how the estimated need of $1.1 mllion made in Decenber 2000 has
changed after the last check run and is currently $1.3 mllion.

M. Spencer stated that the departnment could not anticipate how
many checks would be witten in any given nonth. He stressed the
inability to predict what participants would travel out of the
state and for how long. He assured that the departnent would
continue to provide nonthly forecasts to the | egislature. He warned
that if this itemwere not appropriated, the departnment woul d not
be able to provide the last paynent to the programis participants.

Senator Green asked about "pro-ration" |anguage and asked what
woul d be necessary to inplenent such a system

Co- Chair Donley explained that statutory changes that provided a
pro-ration forrmula for the Longevity Bonus Program would be
required.

Section 1 (f) and (g)

Departnent of Adm nistration

Pi oneer Homes BRU

Conmpl ete the Anchorage Pioneer Honme energency heating and
ventilation systemrepairs, including replacing the unrealized
program recei pts previously appropriated.

$1, 000, 000 general funds

($595, 000) Recei pt Support Services

SFC-01 (19) 02/ 20/ 01



M. Spencer rem nded the Commttee of the previous legislature's
appropriation of $250,000 A aska Housi ng Fi nance Corporation (AHFC)
receipts, and up to $880, 000 pi oneer hone receipts, to upgrade the
ventilation and hum dification systens at the Anchorage Pioneers
Hone. He stressed that the existing systemis in poor condition
Wi th tenperatures reaching 100-degrees in the bathing areas that
serve a clientele with an average age of 87 years old. He noted
that the original request was for $1.4 nmillion, and that the
$880, 000 appropriation was based on a projection of the collected
pi oneer hone recei pts w thout spending authority, nmade at the tine
t he budget was passed. This projection, he el aborated, was nade in
April 2000 and cal cul ated an over-collection in FY 00 of $440, 000.
In fact, he shared, $285,000 was over-collected. He continued that
the appropriation was for two years and used the $440,000
assunption for the second year as well.

M. Spencer summarized that the (f) supplenental budget request
would fully fund the first phase using the existing $250, 000 AHFC
recei pts plus the $285, 000 pi oneers hone recei pts and an additi onal
$1 million general fund. He stated that conpletion of phase one of
the project would alleviate the nore urgent problens.

M. Spencer then addressed the conpani on suppl enental request, (g),
explaining this item adjusts fund receipts in another portion of
the operating budget. He said that in addition to allowing the
project to proceed, this item would reduce the anmount of program
recei pt authority in the case of excess program receipts, those
funds would |apse to the general fund to offset the $1 million
general fund contribution to this project. He stated that the
intent is that to the nmaxi mum extent possible ensure that pioneer
home recei pts pay for this project.

Section 1 (h)

Department of Adm nistration

Retirement and Benefits BRU

Trial preparation for retired enployees' |awsuit concerning
changes in group health benefits.

$87, 000 Benefit Systens Receipts

ALI SON ELCGEE, Deputy Conmmi ssioner, Departnent of Adm nistration,
testified that these funds woul d cone fromthe Teachers' Retirenent
System (TRS) and the Public Enpl oyees' Retirement System (PERS) to
assi st the departnent in preparations for a trial set for Septenber
2001. She rem nded the Conmttee of a decision nmade two years prior
by the Retirement Board following a review of the health benefits
in an attenpt to update nedi cal coverage for retirees. She shared
that the board conpiled a benefit plan that was "cost neutral" and
woul d not increase costs. She stated that three groups representing

SFC-01 (20) 02/ 20/ 01



the covered retirees filed suit against the state contending that
the change is a dimnishnent of benefits. She noted that the funds
would be wused to cover actuarial costs, and other expenses
necessary for trial preparation.

Section (i)

Departnent of Adm nistration

Seni or Servi ces BRU

Fully fund current projections for the senior General Relief
G ants

$150, 000 general funds

Ms. El gee explained that this request funds the costs of protective
services for vulnerable adults and represents paynents to assisted
living facilities. She noted that the paynents cover the costs of
participants of the adult protection system adm nistered by the
D vision of Senior Services. She referred to the fiscal note for SB
73 from the Twenty-first Legislature that increased funding for
assisted living homes. However, she said the program s growth was
underestimated by approxi mately 20 participants.

[ Note: Section 1 (j) contains two itens |listed separately in the
expl anat ory spreadsheet provided by the Ofice of Minagenent and
Budget. Copy of spreadsheet on file.]

Section 1 (j)

Departnent of Adm nistration

Seni or Servi ces BRU

Addi tional federal funds to expand Fam |y Caregivers Gants.
$564, 000 federal funds

Ms. El gee explained this request reflects the federal governnent's
reaut hori zation of the A der Anmericans Act, which includes funding
for a new programcalled the Fam |y Caregivers Act. She noted that
the funds in this itemare in addition to on-going federal funding
for this program and are directed specifically for services to
support famly caregivers, such as respite care.

Ms. Elgee qualified that because the program is in its early
stages, the federal government has not conpleted regul ations and
gui del i nes. However, she stressed, the funds have been appropri ated
ef fective Cctober 1, 2000, and the departnent hoped to issue grants
in 2001. She noted there would be a correspondi ng budget anendnent
to the governor's proposed FY 02 operating budget to reflect this
on-goi ng program funded by the federal governnent.

Section 1 (j)
Department of Adm nistration

SFC-01 (21) 02/ 20/ 01



Seni or Servi ces BRU

Robert Wod Johnson Foundation grant to work with conmunity
partners in rural Al aska to devel op affordable assisted |iving
for seniors.

$50, 000 Statutory Designated Program Receipts

Ms. Elgee shared that this item reflects the recent award
notification of a Robert Wod Johnson Foundation grant. She stated
this would fund a three-year programto allow the departnent to
expand efforts to devel op assisted living and other |ong-termcare
servi ces throughout rural Al aska.

Co- Chair Donl ey asked how t he $50, 000 woul d be used.

Ms. Elgee replied that a second |ong-term non-permnmanent position
would be added to the Rural Long Term Care Project, which is
currently funded by the Mental Health Trust Authority (MHTA). She
spoke to the trenmendous anount of travel and community contact
required by the existing staff to determ ne an appropriate program
for the particular conmunities involved. She continued that the
staff provides assistance to comunities by hel ping them obtain
financing from AHFC. She stated that the goal is to "bring services
closer to the people where it is both cheaper to provide them and
much nore satisfactory to the participants.”

Co-Chair Donley asked if the funds would be used to devel op anot her
program

Ms. Elgee explained that the total grant award is $350,000 and
$50, 000 woul d be used this year. She assured that the program woul d
cease after three years and the efforts woul d suppl enent existing
efforts. She el aborated that the departnent applied for this grant
to expand on-going efforts currently funded by the MHTA to bring
rural long-termcare delivery to rural comunities.

Ms. El gee noted the various grant prograns operated by the AHFC,
assisted living facilities being one of them The grants provide
|l ow-income loans in the form of nortgages, or refinancing to
private individuals to operate assisted lIiving hones. She stated
that this programis to work with communities to assess what is
nost appropriate and to help interested individuals in those
comunities obtain funding for the services best suited for them
She stressed that the financing packages already exist and that
this program assists individuals to obtain that funding. She tal ked
of a new assisted living facility in DIlinghamthat operates using
no state fundi ng except for possible participation in the state's
wai ver program She remarked, "To the degree that we can provide
this opportunity in rural Alaska, it prevents those people, when

SFC-01 (22) 02/ 20/ 01



they need long-termcare services, fromhaving to relocate into one
of our urban centers and end up in a nursing hone bed, which is way
nore expensive and much | ess desirable on their part.”

Senator Hoffrman told of residents in his district and their desire
to remain in their conmmunity and out of nursing hones.

Senator G een knew of two or three senior-service oriented groups,
one being the A der Persons Action Goup, that visit pioneers hones
and wondered if there was an overlap between this function and
t hose groups. She said these organizations visit senior groups to
| earn what services are available in the community.

Ms. El gee expl ai ned the federal charge of the Al aska Comm ssion on
Aging to serve as the advisory board and to nmake grants for
nutrition, transportati on and support services, to nmake requests to
the MHTA for funds for the devel opnent of |ong-termcare services
and to represent people with Al zhei ner and denentia. She noted that
this board is a part of the Dvision of Senior Services and
therefore has oversight for this project anong ot her prograns.

Senator Green asked if the project could result in expanded
Medi cai d wai ver costs to the state.

Ms. El gee responded that the Medicaid wai ver program has expanded
and would continue to expand as community resources becone nore
avai |l abl e. However, she stressed that this is a "cost avoi dance
situation” because no one is admtted to the wai ver program unl ess
also eligible for nursing home services by neeting financial
eligibility and nmedical need criteria. Therefore, she stated that
to the degree that the state is providing service in a waiver
environment, this program provides the care at a significantly
| ower cost.

Section 1 (k)

Department of Adm nistration

Mot or Vehi cl es BRU

Repl ace boating registration receipts shortfall during startup
of program and renew Polaroid contract for drivers |icense
photos due to |lack of response to digital photo Request For
Proposal s.

$287, 200 general funds

M. Spencer explained the two elenments of the request. He stated
t hat $68, 000 of the funds would be used to offset the increased
costs of the Polaroid contract for driver's |icense photos. He
noted the extended contract is necessary to continue operations
until the Division of Mdtor Vehicles can install a digital driver's

SFC-01 (23) 02/ 20/ 01



i censing system He spoke of the unsuccessful efforts of obtaining
a contract for a digital system

SFC-01 # 20, Side A

M. Spencer then detailed the other portion of the request for the
boating registration program He rem nded the Commttee of HB 108,
passed the previous session that established the boating safety
programand instituted a registration requirenment for all unpowered
vessel s over ten feet in |ength.

M. Spencer stated that the fund source of the attached $411, 000
fiscal note was changed from general fund programreceipts to boat
registration receipts, a non-general fund source. Wile over the
|l ong-term he said, this change is beneficial, the program was
short-funded in the first year due to start-up costs and the
inability to wutilize other general fund program receipts. He
expl ained that the projections for the fiscal note were based on
the US Coast CGuard (USCG database of powered boats and esti mates
of the nunmber of unpowered boats. He qualified that the nunber of
canoes and kayaks, etc. that would be registered in the remainder
of the fiscal year is unknown. However, he stated that all would
not be registered. Therefore, he said, this request is based on
estimated receipts of $192,000 and the additional $219,000
necessary to run the programin the first fiscal year.

M. Spencer shared that the program has already incurred over
$180,000 in start-up costs, which includes upgrading the USCG
dat abase and hiring of additional staff to cover registration
activities.

Co- Chair Donl ey wanted to know what woul d happen the next year.

M. Spencer predicted it would be a self-supported program but
reiterated there is no figure for the nunber of unpowered vessels
and related regi stration revenue. He noted that cal cul ati ng revenue
for nost powered vessel registration would be easy since these boat
owners are used to registering these vessels. He added that powered
vessel s operating on non-navi gable waters were not required to be
regi stered under USCG regul ations, but are required under the state
program

Senator W1 ken comented that HB 108 was a difficult bill and that
sone |l egislators voted for it only because of the assurance there
woul d be no general fund requirenent. He hoped the departnent could
find another way to fund the start-up costs due to the prom ses

SFC-01 (24) 02/ 20/ 01



made. He suggested not funding this request and shutting down the
program

Senator Hoffrman pointed out that the last mnute fund source
changes were nmade not at the fault of the departnent.

Co-Chair Donley surmsed that the departnent had wanted to use
not or vehicle receipts for this boating program He renarked, "once
again, people who are paying the notor vehicle receipts are
subsi di zi ng ot her people around the state.”

M. Spencer clarified that the last mnute changes were not
chal l enged but that the departnent was unable to explain the
inplications. He affirmed that the original intent was to utilize
notor vehicle and other division receipts to fund the start-up
costs of the program He stated that the programis "nelded" into
the division's operations and it is difficult to separate all
operating costs. As an exanple, he pointed out that the same staff
processes all mailed in registrations, whether for autonobiles or
boat s.

Co-Chair Donley rebutted that while the sane staff my be
processing the registrations, the boating program serves different
people. He noted that sone areas of the state are exenpt from
payi ng notor vehicle registrations.

Section 9 (a) and (b)
Vari ous Agenci es
I ncreased Fuel Costs BRU
Increased fuel <costs in various agencies for heating,
vehicles, aircraft, ferries, etc. due to higher oil and gas
pri ces.
$2, 123, 000 general funds
457, 600 International Airport Revenue Fund

M. Spencer stated that this item pertains to the Departnent of
Adm nistration with regard to the increased fuel costs to operate
the Pioneers Hones. He admitted the winter weather has been mld,
but enphasi zed fuel prices have been higher.

Section 18

Vari ous Agenci es

M scel | aneous Cl ai ns and Stal e-dated Warrants BRU
Stal e-dated warrants and m scel | aneous cl ai ns.
$85, 500 general funds

141, 100 federal funds

M. Spencer noted the stal e-dated warrants item appears every year

SFC-01 (25) 02/ 20/ 01



in the suppl enental budget to cover |ost or stashed checks that are
over two years old. He remi nded that by statute, the departnent
could not pay these warrants w thout separate appropriation. He
expl ained the mscellaneous clains represents invoices received
after a fiscal year is over and, for various reasons, could not be
paid fromthe current year's appropriation. As an exanple, he gave
prograns that have no | apsed funds.

Senat or Hof f man asked if other states refuse to pay warrants ol der
than two years.

M. Spencer answered that he woul d check.
Senat or Green asked how many departnments had these clains.

M. Spencer responded that all departnents have m scell aneous
clainms, but that only the Departnent of Adm nistration has stale-
dated warrants.

Section 19 (a)(1)

Departnent of Adm nistration

A der Al askans Commi ssi on BRU
AR3530-90 A der Al askan Conm ssi on
$683. 00 general funds

M. Spencer explained this ratification itemas a "clean up of the
accounting system" He detailed that a reinbursable services
agreenent (RSA) was established in FY90 and the funds were expended
for personal services. He continued saying that "there are
frequently timng issues between when revenues cones in and when
the costs have been expended." He stated that this is a case where
the RSA was set up on the expectation of federal receipts, which
never materialized.

Departnent of Comrunity and Econom c¢ Devel opnent

Section 2 (a)

Department of Comrunity and Econonmi ¢ Devel opnent

I nternational Trade and Marketing BRU

International Trade seed potato storage facility feasibility
st udy.

$16, 000 federal funds

TOM LAWSON, Director, Division of Admnistrative Services,
Departnment of Conmunity and Econom c Devel opnent testified to this
US Department of Agriculture (USDA) grant for an Al aska Seed Potato
Storage Facility Feasibility Study. He stated the intent is to
conduct the study in the upcomng spring with conpletion early in

SFC-01 (26) 02/ 20/ 01



the summer. He expl ained the purpose is to review the nmarket demand
in Taiwan and China for these itens, to research Al aska's
production capability and the interest in growing this type of
crop, and to assess the storage facility needs.

Co-Chair Donley wanted to know the amount of general funds that
were included in the FY 01 capital budget for the seed potato
project. He commented that inclusion of this itemwas the reason he
vot ed agai nst the House of Representative's version of the FY 01
capi tal budget.

M. Lawson replied $120,000 was appropriated in the form of a
grant.

Senat or Green renarked, "Too much."

GREG WOLF, Director, Division of International Trade and Marketing
Devel opnent, Departnment of Comrunity and Econom ¢ Devel opnent,
testified via tel econference from Anchorage to the three conponents
of the study. He stressed that Al aska has the ability to produce
virus-free, pest-free seed potatoes, and is the only state all owed
to ship seed potatoes to Taiwan. He added that representatives from
the Peoples Republic of China have traveled to Al aska and that
Al aska may becone the first state permtted to ship seed potatoes
to China.

M. WIf then addressed the second conponent of the study: to
assess Al aska's capability to neet that demand. This, he said,
entails reviewing current and potential acreage available for
producti on.

M. WIf spoke of a task force formed in Novenber 1998 to address
the storage issue of these seed potatoes. He stated that the task
force reviewed progress for seed potato exports, noting the
successful efforts to date. He noted another charge of the task
force is to identify obstacles to this program Anong the four or
five obstacles identified, he shared; one was the | ack of storage.
He summari zed that this study woul d determ ne what type of storage,
and | ocation of such storage, would be necessary.

Co-Chair Donley wanted to know if the study could be conpleted with
$16, 000.

Senator Green asked if the division would perform the study or
contract out.

M. WIf replied that the division is preparing a request for
proposal (RFP). He stated the intention to match this appropriation

SFC-01 (27) 02/ 20/ 01



with $15,000 of existing division funds, $5000 of which would
actually be in-kind staff support services. He calculated the total
cost of the study to cost $30,000 to $35, 000.

Senat or Green wanted to know t he nunmber of interested bidders.

M. WIf anticipated there would be sone interest once the RFP is
issued. He presuned that there would be sufficient interest
consi dering the anount of the contract.

Senat or Green suggested that instead of conducting this study, the
di vision contact the USDA and the Plant Materials Center, which
al ready has nuch of this information

M. WIf responded that while sone of the information may be
readily available, other data needed in the study, such as the
demand- si de aspects, are not known.

Senator Green agreed that the witness could be correct regarding
the lack of information regarding adequate storage facilities.
However, she again stressed that nost of the information could be
obt ai ned fromthe USDA.

Senat or W1 ken asked who woul d build and operate the seed storage
facility, if the need for one were identified.

M. WIf hoped the study would identify this.

Senator WI ken asked if the witness envisioned that the state woul d
own and operate the facility.

M. WIf responded that he was not specifically proposing a state
operated facility and did not know whether it would be appropriate.

Senator Wl ken next referred to the FYOl funding request for the
seed data project. He stated that he had asked for an incone
stat enment showi ng where the previously appropriated noney had gone
and where the requested funds woul d be spent in the current year.
He assuned the FY 02 budget contains a request for this project as
wel | and he asserted that before he would vote for the funding, he
wanted that information. He also wanted to know the state's return
on investnent.

M. WIf replied he woul d request that information, and noted the
University of Alaska is the main recipient of the grant.

Senator Leman noted that funding for virus free seed potatoes has
been provided for at |least ten years and asked that the information

SFC-01 (28) 02/ 20/ 01



Senator W/l ken requested reflect this tinme period. He then asked if
the division would have the consultant assess the comm tnent of
Taiwan and China to honor their financial obligations. He
referenced the new Tai wanese government that chose to not honor its
comm tnent to the seafood processing facility in Anchorage.

M. WIf did not know that ascertaining the credit worthiness of
countries was appropriate. He stated that the division always
advi ses conpanies to exercise good judgnment when entering into
contracts.

Senator Leman agreed, but stressed that the seafood facility
i nvol ves the governnment of Taiwan and not a private business.

M. WIf assured that the buyers of seed potatoes would be private
busi nesses rat her than the governnent.

Senator Green advised that this item has been considered
agriculture revolving loan funds rather than general funds, a
practice she has disagreed wth.

Section 2 (b)

Departnent of Community and Econom c Devel opnent

Regul at ory Conmi ssion of Al aska BRU

Unantici pated increases in costs for personnel, office nove
and managenent information system

$144, 800 Regul atory Comn ssi on Receipts

M. Lawson expl ained this authorization request to cover relocation
of the office, increased |ease costs, increased pipeline-related
wor k|l oads, unexpected managenent information system costs, and
costs for hiring new staff.

Co-Chair Donley wanted to know if there would be an increase in the
exi sting fee structure.

NAN THOWPSON, Comm ssioner and Chair, Regulatory Comm ssion of
Al aska, Departnent of Conmmunity and Econom c Devel opnent, testified
via tel econference from Anchorage that the funds woul d be recovered
t hrough regul atory conm ssion receipts, not through general funds.
She assured that even with the increase, the division wuuld stil
neet the statutory cap.

Co-Chair Donley asked the amunt of the increase in the fee
structure.

Ms. Thonpson replied that it would be nomnal and that the ordinary
consunmer woul dn’t noti ce.

SFC-01 (29) 02/ 20/ 01



Section 12 (a)

Departnent of Community and Econom c Devel opnent

Communi ty and Busi ness Devel opnent BRU

Lapse extension to June 30, 2004 of National Petroleum
Reserve- Al aska grant appropriation in sec. 63, ch. 2, FSSLA
1999.

No dol | ar anount

Section 12 (b)

Departnent of Comrunity and Econom c Devel opnent

Capital BRU

Appropriate grants from National Petroleum Reserve-Al aska
receipts.

$1, 728, 000 federal funds

M. Lawson rem nded the Committee that in 1999 the |egislature
appropriated National Petroleum Reserve-Al aska (NPRA) funds,
t hrough the NPRA I npact G ant Fund programto address the inpacts
of oil and gas exploration and devel opnent in conmunities near the
reserve. He stated that the funds were providing in the operating
budget and the suppl enental request converts the funds to capital
funds and inserts a | apse date of June 30, 2004. He expl ai ned t hat
the grants offered, are nostly construction-type grants.

Co-Chair Donley asked if the anount reflected in the request is the
anount that woul d | apse.

M. Lawson answered the amount reflects the NPRA funds the state
woul d receive in the current year and in FY 01

Co- Chair Donl ey asked who deci des what projects the grants fund
woul d and which communities receive them He asserted that the
funds were to help cover the $8 nillion shortfall in the power cost
equal i zati on (PCE) program

M. Lawson agreed that "a fairly l|arge anmount of noney" was
appropriated to PCE. However, he noted that federal and state | aws
dictated that funds nmust first be spent for inpact grants.

Senator W/l ken, referring to grant applications, asked for an
expl anati on of what a wooden deck ball court has to do with oi

exploration. He renenbered, during his first year as a nenber of
the Conmittee, a promse that this fund source would be used to
hel p PCE He stated that the promse had been forgotten and
reconmended returning to the intent of that prom se. He stressed
that he woul d support these projects if he felt they were actually
linked to NPRA. He gave as an exanple, the Gty of Nuiqgsut, which

SFC-01 (30) 02/ 20/ 01



is hundreds of mles from NPRA.

Senator Leman commented that M. Lawson was right, but that Senator
W ken and Co-Chair Donley were also correct. He recalled Senator
Adans' prom se on behalf of the communities he represented, that
they would nake a good faith effort not to consune all of the funds
on grant projects so funds wwuld be available for PCE
Unfortunately, Senator Leman opined, not all conmunities were
foll ow ng through

Senat or Hof fman had the sane recoll ection. He expanded that these
comunities all had "first call” on the funds and any unutilized
funds could be used for other purposes. He addressed Senator
Wl ken's comment regarding the |ocation of Nuiqsut, pointing out
that the eligible comunities are listed in federal |aw Senator
Hof f man did not know the authority of "what those dollars could be
spent on."

Senator G een asked if the 1999 projects were authorized prior to
t he conversations about using these funds to assist PCE

Ms. McConnell responded that the original list of grant requests
far exceeded what was avail abl e under the NPRA grant. She affirned
t hat Senator Adans worked with communities to reduce their requests
to make funds avail able for PCE, which occurred.

Ms. McConnel |l pointed out that statutes governing the approval of
projects provide for not only the environnental inpacts, but also
social, economc and cultural inpacts of oil exploration and
devel opnent. This is the reason for such projects as Senator WI ken
mentioned, she stated. She stressed that all the projects net the
statutory requirenents.

Ms. MConnell spoke to the conversion from operating funds to
capi tal grant funds, as an oversight, enphasizing that the projects
are "clearly capital projects.”

Senator W1l ken asked if the statutes the witness referred to were
state or federal.

Ms. McConnell answered these are state statutes, and was unsure if
the federal guidelines are statutory or regul atory.

Senat or W1 ken renenbered that the issue was addressed two years
prior, when the funds first becane avail able, rather than one year
ago. He suggested reviewing and possibly anending the state
statute.

SFC-01 (31) 02/ 20/ 01



Ms. McConnell stressed that there were funds that were appropriated
to PCE in cooperation with the communities. Therefore, she surm sed
that the comm tnent was kept.

Co-Chair Donley countered that the PCE program still has an $8
mllion shortage in the current year.

Ms. McConnell clarified that the shortage is not in the current
fiscal year. She explained that the full effects of the endownrent
woul d not have begun by FY 02, when it was estinmated that the state
would need to provide $1.8 mllion annually. As a result, she
continued, the state would have to provide greater support before
the effects of the endowrent woul d be realized. She noted that this
informati on was provided to the Commttee in the previous session,
and that she would redistribute those spreadsheets.

Senator W/l ken wanted a list of those communities that received
grants and the projects the grants funded. He noted that in the
previ ous year, a certain amount of funds were avail able but that
there were five times as many requests as avail abl e funds. He was
interested in know ng which communities forewent their requested
proj ects.

Senat or Hoffman relayed discussions held during US Senator Ted
Stevens' l|ast visit. Senator Hoffman recalled there was House of
Representatives' legislation to use substantially nore NPRA grant
funds for PCE. Senator Stevens had argued that such use of the
funds went against the original intent of the grants, according to
Senat or Hof f man.

Ms. McConnel |l understood the sane.

Senat or Austernman requested that the PCE information be supplied to
all Commttee nenbers.

#
ADJ QURNIVENT

Co- Chair Dave Donl ey adjourned the neeting at 09:16 PM

SFC-01 (32) 02/ 20/ 01



